
 
 

Fall Quarterly Business Meeting 
October 1, 2020 

Zoom Conferencing 
 

Agenda 
 
 

Thursday, October 1 
       
9:00 a.m. Business Meeting  
   Call to Order 
   Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
   Introductions (Attendee list in meeting packet) 
   Welcome and Announcements 
   Agenda Approval:  October 1, 2020 – Fall Business Meeting 
   Minutes Approval:  July 30, 2020 - Annual Business Meeting 

Recognitions, Relocations, Memorials 
   President Report 
   Officers’ Reports 
 
9:45 a.m. Award Ceremony 
 
10:00 a.m. WA Disaster Resiliency Workgroup Report 
 
10:15 a.m. Emergency Management Committee Update 
 
10:30 a.m. Accreditation Committee Update 
 
10:45 a.m. C & R Committee Update  
 

11:00 a.m. Guest Reports: 
• International Code Council 

• ICC Region II  

• ICC Local Chapters 

• IABO 

• WPLBO 

• State Building Code Council 

• State Agencies 

• WABO/SEAW 

• MyBuildingPermit.com 

• Liaison Reports 

• Other 

 
 



11:45 a.m.  Motions and Action Items 
Unfinished Business 

 New Business 
 Announcements 

   
   
12:00 p.m. Adjourn 
 
1:00 p.m.    Committee Meetings  

   

October 1, 2020 TCD meeting cancelled.  Please attend the next scheduled  

meeting on October 19, 2020. 

 

• Technical Code Committee via GoToMeeting  (1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.) 
    
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/363005272  
 
You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States: +1 (646) 749-3131 
Access Code: 363-005-272  
 
TCD Committee Agenda 
 

• Welcome and introduction 

• TAG Groups 

• Schedule of Codes 

• WAC and Errata 

• ICC Group A and SBCC Group 1 Proposals 

• Adjourn 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/363005272


1 

 “Leading the way to excellence in building and life safety” 
 

 
 Proposed MINUTES – 2020 Annual Business Meeting 

Zoom Conferencing 
July 30, 2020 

Call to Order  
 
The annual business meeting of the voting representatives was called to order by President Ray 
Allshouse on July 30, 2020 at 9:00 a.m.  

 
Roll Call  
 
The following executive board officers were present: 
  

C. Ray Allshouse  - President 
 Kurt Aldworth   - 1st Vice President 
 Lee Kranz   - 2nd Vice President 
 Tom Phillips   - Immediate Past President 
 
The following executive board directors were present: 
 Brian Smith   - Certification & Registration 

Micah Chappell  - Technical Code Development 
  Tim Woodard   - Government Relations 

Angela Haupt   - Finance 
Todd Blevins     - Education 
Stacy Criswell     - Outreach Services 
Ray Cockerham   - Emergency Management 
Andy Higgins   - Accreditation 
Jon Siu   - Past President  
Trace Justice   - Past President  
Gary Schenk   - Past President 
 

The following management personnel were present: 
 Tara Jenkins   - Executive Director   
 
Introductions 
 
 Registration list on file at WABO office. 
 
Agenda  
 
The President presented the proposed Agenda for the July 30, 2020, Annual Business Meeting.  
 

MOTION:  It was moved and seconded that the agenda as amended be approved.    
 The motion carried. 
 

WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF BUILDING OFFICIALS 



2 

Minutes 

 
The President presented the proposed Minutes for the WABO Spring Business Meeting on April 
23, 2020.  
 

MOTION:  It was moved and seconded that the Minutes be approved as modified.  
The motion carried.   

 
President’s Report 
 
President Ray Allshouse reported the State Building Code Council (SBCC) will delay 
implementation of the 2018 codes until February 1, 2021.  Ray announced the International 
Code Council (ICC) Board, after much deliberation, determined it was in the best interest of its 
members and staff to cancel the 2020 Annual Business Meeting.  The ICC Board will be 
working on proposed bylaw changes to present to the membership that will address alternate 
methods to conduct future ABM’s if a pandemic or emergency arises.  
 
First Vice President 
 
Nothing to report. 
 
Second Vice President 
 
Lee Kranz provided an update on the WA Custom Codes and informed the membership that the 
2018 Washington Building Code, Fire Code, Existing Building Code, International Wildland-
Urban Interface Code and State Energy – Residential Provisions are available.  The 2018 
Washington Mechanical Code is being published and the 2018 Washington Residential Code is 
on the second round of revisions and should be available by late August.  The Washington 
State Energy – Commercial Provisions is on the last revision and will be sent to the printer soon. 
 
Lee provided an update on the SB5795 contractor accountability workgroup and fully expect 
that the code official recommendations will be published in the minority report. 
 
Immediate Past President 
 
Nothing to report. 
 
 
Nominating Committee  
 
Tom Phillips announced the WABO Board of Director elections will be held immediately after his 
report and all positions have received nominations.  
 
The current candidates for the WABO Board of Directors are as follows:  
 

Officers: 
Kurt Aldworth   - President 
Lee Kranz   - 1st Vice President 
Andy  Higgins   - 2nd Vice President 
 
Committee Chairs: 
Micah Chappell  - Technical Code Development 

 Brian Smith   - Certification & Registration  



3 

Todd Blevins   - Education 
Tim Woodard   - Government Relations 
Stacy Criswell   - Outreach Services 

            Ray Cockerham   - Emergency Management 
Angela Haupt   - Finance 
James Tumelson  - Accreditation 

 
Tom explained being an Officer or Committee Chair is very rewarding.  You can help WABO 
grow and expand benefits to our membership.   
 
 
Election of WABO Board of Directors: 
 
Tom Phillips announced the current candidates and asked if there were any other nominations 
for the Board of Directors.  
 

MOTION:  It was moved and seconded to close nominations.    
 The motion carried. 
 
He called for unanimous consent for the Officers. 
 

MOTION:  It was moved and seconded that the officers be approved.    
 The motion carried. 
 
He then asked for unanimous consent on the committee chair races. 
 

MOTION:  It was moved and seconded that the committee chair races be 
approved.    

 The motion carried. 
 
Emergency Management Committee 
 
Ray Cockerham informed the membership that the WAsafe Operations Manual for coordinators 
is currently being tested at the City of Puyallup.  Ray is trying to coordinate virtual training 
options for coordinators during the pandemic, if you are interested in becoming a coordinator for 
the program please contact him.  The initial run of WAsafe badges have already been issued 
and SEAW provided a $600 donation to assist with the badging costs. 
 
 
GUEST REPORTS: 
 
International Code Council 
 
David Spencer provided an overview of the Long-Term Code Development Process Committee 
and encouraged interested members to contact Mike Pfeiffer to get involved.  David reported 
the Board decision to cancel the 2020 Annual Business Meeting was debated very heavily and 
the decision of the Board was to cancel.  The ICC Bylaws committee will be working on editorial 
changes as well proposed changes to address what to do in the event of a pandemic (world, 
national or regional) to present to the membership.  David stated the Honorary Member 
Committee would continue to work however the new members cannot be ratified until the 2021 
ABM. 
 
 



4 

ICC Region II 
 
Trace Justice reported that ICC Region II had ICC President Wheeler on the call who updated 
Region II on what ICC was planning for 2021.  Trace announced that two new permit technician 
organizations have started up and that Region II is a large supporter of Permit Tech Nation. 
 
IABO 
 
Gary Schenk reported that there is nothing to report since code development has been stalled.  
IABO is seeking a representative from the West who is code development driven. 
 
WPLBO 
 
Gary Schenk announced WPLBO was cancelled since the 2020 ICC ABM was cancelled. 
 
OBOA 
 
OBOA President Ted Zuk from Jackson County OR reported that Oregon jurisdictions are 
utilizing the CARES Act, doing remote inspections, and getting really good at Zoom. Oregon did 
not experience a construction shutdown in their state and empathized with Washington when 
we were shutdown.  OBOA ABM is August 27, 2020 and encouraged members to visit their new 
website to register.  Oregon lost their ICC Governmental Representative and Kraig Stevenson is 
now their representative once again.  
 
WABO/SEAW 
 
Lee Kranz announced the WABO/SEAW committee will be updating several existing white 
papers to publish by the end of January 2021.  Lee requested members that are interested in 
the committee to contact him. 
 
State Agencies 
 
No reports. 
 
State Building Code Council 
 
Richard Brown announced that the third approved SBCC Staff Code Specialist is on hold due to 
State hiring freeze.  Richard reported the 2018 Progress toward the 2030 Report to the 
legislature is still being worked on and that a Tsunami TAG is being established.  Richard 
announced his upcoming retirement and recruitment for the Managing Director position will start 
soon.  Richard provided legislative updates on:  Hydrocarbons, EV Charging Infrastructure, 
Appliance Efficiency Standards, Renewable Energy Systems, Adult Family Homes, Fire and 
Smoke Control Systems and Fire Safety Requirements for Mobile On-Demand Gasoline 
Providers.  Richard stated the SBCC is also recruiting for the 2021 TAG committee 
representatives.  
 
MyBuildingPermit.com (MBP) 
 
Tyler Running Deer reported there are currently 17 jurisdictions that are part of MBP. Tyler 
announced the Publication Committee is working on updating the tip sheets to the 2018 codes 
and reported several virtual update classes will be offered the week of September 14-16, 2020. 
There were several dashboard improvements and MPB have added eCheck functionality to the 
system.  Tyler reported the City of Renton exited the program and SeaTac and Edmonds have 



5 

newly joined and Auburn and Federal Way intend to onboard in Q4 2020.  MBP’s ABM has 
been delayed until January 2021 and will be likely held in Woodinville, WA area. 
 
Electrical Cities 
 
Kurt Aldworth reported the adoption of the 2020 NEC is October 29, 2020.  The committee held 
a discussion on TI’s not being reviewed for the Energy Code and enforcement or lobbying 
needs to be pursued.  Kurt reported that Chris Jensen from UL will be providing training in 
August in partnership with MBP.  Electrical Cities next meeting will be October 19, 2020. 
 
AIA 
 
Ray Allshouse reported the Seattle AIA Chapter Code Committee continues to meet virtually 
every month.  Training for the Seattle update is coming. 
 
Underground Construction Economy 
 
Gary Schenk reported that there has not been a meeting since the COVID-19 shutdown.  
SB5795 has been addressing some of the issues that the underground economy has been 
dealing with and anticipates the meetings will increase as soon as SB5795 has finalized their 
report. 
  
  
Motion and Action Items: 
 
Budget Report 
 
Angela Haupt presented the 2020/2021 WABO Budget. 
 

Motion: It was moved and seconded to approve the 2020/2021 Budget as 
presented.  
The motion carried. 
 

Announcements 
 

Lee Kranz informed members that WABO’s Strategic Plan is located on the WABO 
website and encouraged any recommendations be submitted to Andy Higgins. 
 
Brian Smith announced code official volunteers are needed for the SIRP Advisory Board.  
If you are interested in serving please contact Tara or Brian. 

 
 
Unfinished Business 
 
None. 
 
New Business 
 
 Outreach – 2020 Fall QBM 
 
 Stacy Criswell led the outreach discussion asking jurisdictions if they are experiencing 

any budget cuts and what training in the future would they be looking for.  A poll was 
conducted:  57% responded that they do not have any travel restrictions that would stop  



6 

them from attending in-person training and/or meetings with 12% reporting that they do 
and 31% did not answer the question.  When asked with upcoming budget shortfalls, 
what type of training/meetings would you be able to attend in 2021: 4% reported in- 
person, 21% reported online and 75% reported they can attend both. 
 

Swear In 2020/2021 Board of Directors 
 
ICC Director, David Spencer, swore in the newly elected 2020/2021 WABO Board of Directors. 

 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:40 a.m. 
 
 



WABO Fall Business Meeting

October 1, 2020
Attendee List

KURT  ALDWORTH CBO, ACO
CITY OF KIRKLAND

C. RAY  ALLSHOUSE AIA, CBO, ACO
CITY OF SHORELINE

STEVEN  BLAKE
CITY OF BURIEN

R. TODD   BLEVINS  CBO
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND

AMY  BRACKENBURY
WABO LOBBYIST

RICHARD  BROWN
STATE BUILDING CODE COUNCIL

MICAH  CHAPPELL MBA, CBO
CITY OF SEATTLE, DCI

AL  CHRISTENSEN
CITY OF TUMWATER

RAY  COCKERHAM CBO
CITY OF PUYALLUP

SUE  COFFMAN CBO, P.E., CFM
CITY OF TACOMA

GREGORY  COLVIG CBO, ACO
THE CODE READER

STACY  CRISWELL CBO, ACO
CITY OF MONROE

STEPHANIE  DAY
CITY OF KIRKLAND

ALAN  ELLIS
ELLIS CONSULTING SERVICES

MIKE  FROEMMING
CITY OF SPOKANE VALLEY

MARTY  GILLIS CBO
WEST COAST CODE CONSULTANTS, INC.

RAFIK  GINDY
CITY OF LAKEWOOD

DIANE  GLENN
CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANTS OF WA, LLC

PAUL  GNEIDING
WEST COAST CODE CONSULTANTS, INC.

LUIS  GONZALEZ
CITY OF CHELAN

ANGELA  HAUPT CBO
CITY OF KIRKLAND

JASON  HENSEL
SAN JUAN COUNTY

DANA  HERRON CBO
CITY OF MILTON

C. ANDREW  HIGGINS MCP, CBO, ACO
CITY OF SEATTLE, DCI

TARA  JENKINS
WASHINGTON ASSN OF BUILDING OFFICIALS

CHRISTOPHER  JENSEN
UL, LLC

HOYT  JETER PE
CITY OF TACOMA

LEE  KRANZ CBO, ACO
CITY OF BELLEVUE DSD

CAROL  LEWIS
CITY OF REDMOND

TIM  LINCOLN
CITY OF ORTING

ALLEN   LUKE
CITY OF PULLMAN

JIM  MATTISON
SIMPSON STRONG-TIE

S. KELLY  MAYO CBO, ACO
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUSTRIES

MARY KATE  MCGEE CBO, ACO
CITY OF SEATAC



JEROMY  MOORE
CITY OF PULLMAN

RYAN  MUMMA CBO
CITY OF LAKE STEVENS

SHANE  NILLES
CITY OF CHENEY

THOMAS  PHILLIPS CBO, ACO
TOWN OF WOODWAY

CHRIS  RICKETTS
KING COUNTY, DEPTARTMENT OF PERMITTING

GARY  SCHENK CBO, ACO
WABO

MARC   SCHOENBERG CBO
CITY OF PACIFIC

ROBERT  SHUEY CBO
CITY OF RENTON

AMANDA  SIOK
FEMA - REGION 10

JONATHAN  SIU PE, SE, ACO
CITY OF SEATTLE, DCI

BRIAN  SMITH CBO, ACO
CITY OF BELLEVUE

MARK  SNIFFEN CBO
CITY OF MOUNT VERNON

FRANK  STEWART
HOOVER TREATED WOOD PRODUCTS

MARC  STRAUB
TOWN OF WINTHROP

DAVID   SWASEY
CITY OF BOTHELL

QUYEN  THAI
CITY OF TACOMA

JAMES  TUMELSON ME, CBO, MCP
CITY OF EDGEWOOD

DEE  WARNES
CITY OF MAPLE VALLEY

TIM  WOODARD
CITY OF  BLAINE

MICHELLE  YEE
SIMPSON STRONG- TIE COMPANY, INC











WABO
Budget Comparison

07/01/2020 to 08/31/2020

This Period Budgeted Percentage

Member Services

Income 1,720$            61,700$             2.8%

Expense 27,322$          229,330$           11.9%

Bookstore

Income 17,046$          229,647$           7.4%

Expense 16,651$          219,820$           7.6%

Welder Program

Income 65,905$          486,995$           13.5%

Expense 34,948$          206,525$           16.9%

Special Inspection Program

Income 36,180$          140,875$           25.7%

Expense 23,790$          136,704$           17.4%

Education Institute

Income (200)$              116,250$           -0.2%

Expense 242$               130,720$           0.2%

Seminars

Income -$                    15,000$             0.0%

Expense -$                    9,550$               0.0%

Accreditation Income 1,750$            12,515$             14.0%

Expenses 3,693$            27,582$             13.4%

Finance Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 3,734$            24,200$             15.4%

Government Relations

Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 6,058$            37,650$             16.1%

Outreach

Income -$                    -$                       

Expense -$                    4,000$               0.0%

Technical Code Development

Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 29$                 79,500$             0.0%

Emergency Management

Income -$                    -$                       

Expense 2,680$            21,750$             12.3%

Administration

Income 1,012$            10,250$             9.9%

Expense 5,575$            45,167$             12.3%

Total

Income 123,413$        1,073,232$        11.5%

Expense 124,720$        1,172,498$        10.6%



Jul - Aug 20

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Accredited Code Official Progra 50.00
Bookstore

Book Sales 15,233.54
Book Sales - ICC Sales 1,121.77
Shipping & Handling Income 691.03

Total Bookstore 17,046.34

Education Institute Income
Registrations -AEI -200.00

Total Education Institute Income -200.00

Interest
Money Market 7.69

Total Interest 7.69

Investment Income
Dividends 1,004.32

Total Investment Income 1,004.32

Job Postings on Web Page 1,050.00
Membership Dues 719.60

Registrations 1,700.00

Special Inspection
Agency Audits 405.00
Fabricators

Fabricator Inital Application 250.00
Fabricators - Other 4,496.52

Total Fabricators 4,746.52

Key Personnel 1,380.00
Special Inspect -Other Income 15,400.00
Special Inspectors 14,248.33
Special Inspection - Other 0.00

Total Special Inspection 36,179.85

Welder Certification
Weld Agency Apps & Renewals 3,675.46
Weld Agency Audit 1,200.00
Weld Applications and Renewals 59,830.00
Weld Examiner Apps & Renewals 950.00
Welder Income - Other 200.00

Total Welder Certification 65,855.46

Total Income 123,413.26

Gross Profit 123,413.26

Expense
Awards 207.94
B&O Taxes 1,637.41
Bookstore Purch - COGS

Amendments / Codes 401.95
Bookstore Purch - COGS - Other 10,891.99

WABO - Summary
Profit & Loss

July through August 2020

Page 1



Jul - Aug 20

Total Bookstore Purch - COGS 11,293.94

Computer Expenses
Web Page Fees 824.57
Computer Expenses - Other 601.56

Total Computer Expenses 1,426.13

Credit Card Fees 3,044.56
Dues & Fees

Membership Fees 333.00

Total Dues & Fees 333.00

Executive Board
Meetings 60.00
Travel 507.14

Total Executive Board 567.14

Lobbyist 6,000.00
Management Fees 82,829.92

Marketing/ Advertising
Scholarships 340.00

Total Marketing/ Advertising 340.00

Meeting Expenses 22.89

Postage and Shipping Expense
Postage and Shipping Other NGO 123.85
Postage and Shipping Expense - O... 3,191.19

Total Postage and Shipping Expense 3,315.04

Printing 345.14

Publication Expense 877.14
Speaker/Presenters 0.00
Supplies 838.81

Tech Consultant Services
Consultant Travel Fee & Expense 5,265.38
Fabricator Consultant 1,282.50
SIRP Consultant 2,660.00
Welder Consultant 1,520.00

Total Tech Consultant Services 10,727.88

Telephone and Internet 706.41
Travel Expense 207.06

Total Expense 124,720.41

Net Ordinary Income -1,307.15

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Unrealized Gain/Loss 49,261.97

Total Other Income 49,261.97

Net Other Income 49,261.97

WABO - Summary
Profit & Loss

July through August 2020

Page 2



Jul - Aug 20

Net Income 47,954.82

WABO - Summary
Profit & Loss

July through August 2020

Page 3



Washington 
Disaster 

Resiliency 
Workgroup

REPORT TO 
WASHINGTON 
ASSOCIATION OF 
BUILDING OFFICIALS

WABO FALL 
BUSINESS MEETING -
OCTOBER 1, 2020



Web Page (Insurance Commissioner)

https://www.insurance.wa.gov/washington-disaster-resiliency-work-group

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Purpose

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Workgroup Composition & Meetings
30 members representing lawmakers, tribal leaders, state agencies, 
private entities, local municipalities, and the insurance industry
◦ Jon Siu & Ray Cockerham (WABO primary and alternate)

7 meetings between September 2019 and August 2020
◦ 3 in-person, 4 Zoom
◦ 3-4 hours each

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Task
Review natural disaster resiliency activities and make 
recommendations to Legislature and governor on:
◦ Whether this state should create an ongoing disaster resiliency program.
◦ What the activities the program should engage in.
◦ How the program should coordinate with state agencies and other entities 

engaged in disaster mitigation and resiliency work.
◦ Where the program should be housed.
◦ How the program should be funded.

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Recommendations
Review natural disaster resiliency activities and make 
recommendations to Legislature and governor on:
◦ Whether this state should create an ongoing disaster resiliency program. YES
◦ What the activities the program should engage in.
◦ How the program should coordinate with state agencies and other entities 

engaged in disaster mitigation and resiliency work.
◦ Where the program should be housed.
◦ How the program should be funded.

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Recommendations - Definition
“Resilience is the ability to prepare, mitigate and plan for, withstand 
and recover from, to more successfully adapt to adverse events and 

changing conditions, and reorganize in an equitable manner that 
results in a new and better condition.”

Notes:
◦ Not return to normal or to pre-event condition
◦ There is not a one-size fits all communities

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Recommendations - Activities
◦ Develop, administer, track, and communicate progress of the state resiliency 

strategy 
◦ Conduct and/or coordinate research, data collection and analysis 
◦ Assist in the coordination of funding and research economic tools to address 

resiliency 
◦ Conduct policy research and recommendations 
◦ Develop, coordinate and communicate resilience initiatives and/or projects 
◦ Serve as a public/private resilience resource center 
◦ Enhance collaboration, education and outreach programs 

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Recommendations – Where Housed
Governor’s Office 
◦ For prominence, weight, and protection
◦ Executive Director & staff
◦ Volunteer Advisory Board

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Recommendations - Funding
Source: State General Fund
Preferred option:
◦ $650K startup through 2024 (6 staff)
◦ Increase to $1.1M in 2025 (12 staff)
Additional funding needed if reimburse Advisory Board travel
Concerns: 
◦ Post-COVID budget
◦ 1 opinion that work can be covered by existing staff

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP



Questions/Information
Ask Jon/Ray
See Workgroup webpage:
◦ https://www.insurance.wa.gov/washington-disaster-resiliency-work-group

WASHINGTON DISASTER RESILIENCY WORKGROUP

https://www.insurance.wa.gov/washington-disaster-resiliency-work-group

	01  Agenda Fall Meeting Virtual - Oct 1, 2020
	02  MINUTES July 30, 2020
	03 Fall 2020 Attendees
	04  Relocations Recognitions Memorials (FALL 2020)
	05  WABO Sponsor List
	06  Schedule of Events (FALL 2020)
	07  ACO's
	08 Financials - Fall 2020
	Budget Comparison 083120
	P & L - July - August 2020

	09  Washington Disaster Resiliency Workgroup (WABO)
	Washington Disaster Resiliency Workgroup
	Web Page (Insurance Commissioner)
	Purpose
	Workgroup Composition & Meetings
	Task
	Recommendations
	Recommendations - Definition
	Recommendations - Activities
	Recommendations – Where Housed
	Recommendations - Funding
	Questions/Information




